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Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2011. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
(under Continuing operation) of HK$1,067.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 62.0% compared with the previous financial year. The
decrease was mainly due to the reduction in valuation gains on investment
properties from HK$2,751.3 million for the previous financial year to
HK$788.2 million for the year under review. The valuation gains will only
affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flow of the Group.
Excluding the valuation gains on investment properties, the Group achieved
a profit from operations (under Continuing operation) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2011 of approximately HK$278.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately HK$224.4 million compared with the previous
financial year. The increase was mainly attributable to a full year rental
income from iISQUARE in the year under review compared to the previous

financial year (rental income from iISQUARE started in September 2009).

With the inclusion of the discontinued operation (see note 5 to the financial
statements), the Group achieved a profit from operations of approximately
HK$1,269.6 million, compared with a profit from operations of approximately

HK$2,811.2 million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

As announced on 2 March 2011, the disposal of the Group’s properties
located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf resort
which is situated on the golf course land, the condominium land and the
bungalow land was completed on 2 March 2011 and the Group’s golf and

recreational club operation ceased thereafter.

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing a number of retail,
entertainment, food and beverage establishments and had its first full year
rental contribution. Rental income from iSQUARE amounted to approximately
HK$376.1 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2011 and the
occupancy rate at 31 March 2011 was approximately 92%.

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in

Guangzhou in the PRC, continued to generate rental income during the year.

Annual Report 2010-2011 3% 03
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With the inclusion of the discontinued operation, interest income for the
financial year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$3.4 million, representing an increase of approximately HK$1.2 million
compared with the previous financial year.

Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2011 was HK$10,158.6 million,
compared with HK$8,864.8 million (restated) at 31 March 2010.

As announced on 20 October 2006, Associated International Hotels Limited
(“AIHL”), which is the Company’s 50.01% owned subsidiary, has entered
into a facility agreement with a bank comprising of a 5-year term loan facility
of up to HK$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to
HK$200 million. AIHL has exercised the option as contained in the facility
agreement to request for the extension of the facilities for two additional
years. The lending bank has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to grant
such an extension. At 31 March 2011, the banking facilities totalling
HK$1,200 million were fully utilised and the Group’s gearing ratio was 11.8%
(calculated as total bank loan over total equity). Subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the Group early repaid the bank loan totalling HK$900 million in
April and May 2011.

Outlook

The retail property market in Hong Kong is currently strong. The Group
actively monitors the tenant mix of iISQUARE and continues to market the
mall to enhance its leasing performance. Barring unforeseen circumstances,
the Directors believe that ISQUARE will continue to evolve into a leading
consumer destination in the area and expect rental income will continue to
increase.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Tuesday, 6 September 2011. For the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 1 September 2011 to Tuesday, 6 September 2011, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All
transfers must be lodged with the Company’s share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday, 31 August 2011.
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Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.17 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil). With this proposed final
dividend, it will make a total distribution of HK$0.17 per share for the year
(2010: Nil), as no interim dividend was paid during the year. Subject to the
shareholders’ approval on the proposed final dividend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitiement to the
said final dividend from Thursday, 22 September 2011 to Tuesday,
27 September 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. All transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, not later than 4:30 pm
on Wednesday, 21 September 2011. The proposed final dividend will be
paid on Thursday, 20 October 2011 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members on Tuesday, 27 September 2011 following
approval at the AGM. A separate announcement pertaining to the closure of
register of members for dividend entitlement will be published subsequent to
the AGM.

Staff

At 31 March 2011, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iISQUARE, was
129 (81 March 2010: 128) and the related costs incurred during the year
were approximately HK$29.1 million (31 March 2010: HK$25.8 million).
Subsequent to the cessation of the Group’s golf and recreational club
operation on 2 March 2011, employees engaged in that operation are being
retained by the Group until 30 June 2011 under a transitional arrangement
with the purchaser, with an arrangement for reimbursement by the
purchaser. After 30 June 2011, the number of employees of the Group will
reduce accordingly.

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside
training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This 31-storey
complex provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping

podium, cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
Theatre. iISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops and carparking spaces. The

Centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) except that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated and
performed by two individuals, which was inconsistent with code provision

A.2.1 of the CG Code.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly

and efficiently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code for dealing in securities in the Company by its directors (“Model Code”).
Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the Company of any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2011.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2011 comprised the

following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. It
formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans and oversees
the financial and management performance of the Group. For efficient
operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s

business.
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Directors

Board of Directors (continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2011 on a going concern basis, the directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them
consistently with those applied to the financial statements of the previous
financial year. The directors have also made judgements and estimates

which are reasonable.

The directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out

in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 34 to 35.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, were held
during the year ended 31 March 2011. Individual attendance of the directors

is set out below:

HESHEAE AERHFEERRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

BITEE Executive Directors

ERIE S (/) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6
EEMEE(BIF/E) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6
EmE LA Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/6
friedetes Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6
$EIEIS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6

FHPITEE Non-executive Directors

VEAERR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6
BIZER A Mr Lau Wah Sum 6/6
B ITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6
HESFEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6
HMS TR AE Mr Tse Pang Yuen 6/6

Annual Report 2010-2011 3% 09
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Non-executive Directors and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
independent non-executive directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles, Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of
the remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management; to
determine the remuneration packages for all executive directors and senior
management; to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors; to
review and approve performance-based remuneration; to review and
approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the Company’s
website and are also available upon written request to the company

secretary.

Remuneration for executive directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee without
recommendation of or reference to the chief executive officer) on an annual
basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the review of remuneration for non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors annually. For all other staff, it is the
executive directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.

Annual Report 2010-2011 &£ 11
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and executive directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 29 to the financial
statements on page 116, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the remuneration committee held
two meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration structure;
considered and fixed the remuneration packages for executive directors and
senior management and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration for both the non-executive directors and independent non-

executive directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HESBRE FERLESRRY

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
BESTE(ZESLE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2
BIEEIRSEAE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
AR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
hFEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2

12 Tian Teck Land Limited XE#EGRA A
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Nomination of Directors
The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and

function of such committee are currently performed by the Board.

As regards nomination of directors, the Board is responsible for the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of directors. For appointment of a
new director, the Board considers not only the skills and experience of the
candidate, but also his/her value to the Company, so as to ensure that there
is a balanced composition of the Board. The process for re-election of a
director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, which requires
that (i) every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election; and
(ii) directors who are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall
retire at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next annual

general meeting) and directors so appointed are eligible for re-election.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Board made
recommendations and provided biographical details to shareholders of the
Company on directors standing for re-election. The Chairman from time to
time reviewed the composition of the Board with particular regard to the
number of independent non-executive directors. The Board also reviewed

and determined the suitability and terms for re-appointment of directors.

Annual Report 2010-2011 3% 13
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EERA@® Nomination of Directors (continued)
EEE—_T——F=A=1t—HIEFERNHREH Among the six board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2011,
MANrEEZeexd  MiIieEEEHETsE two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment of directors.
EEH c SESEREZMAESESHE 2XHW Individual attendance of the directors at the said two board meetings is set
T~ out below:

HESERE FERLESERY

Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HNITEE Executive Directors
BRI (EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BEMEE(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
B Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
BAEF ST Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
$EIRIS/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FENTTEF Non-executive Directors
EARRB S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
BIEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
BUINTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
EESET e Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEHEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
HS T E Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2

ZEETEN & Auditors’ Remuneration

REE-Z—F=A=1+—HLLFE ' ARQ7F During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Auditors of the Company, KPMG,
ZHEM —E25RSHMEBMRAEEREE provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$1,063,000 to the
{4975 % 1,063,000 7T B #Z B AR IS M EE LB Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
537,0007T 2 FEIZEURTS - IEEBIRBERBED HK$537,000 to the Group, which included HK$223,000 and HK$305,000
71| 475 ¥ 223,0007T 7% #5 305,000 7T K9 B 75 AR 75 being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

e HAE RO AR TS o
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Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are to
make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of external auditors; to review and monitor external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of their audit process; to
discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement policy
on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit services; to oversee
financial reporting system and internal control procedure and to review
financial information of the Group. Details of the audit committee’s authority
and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference
are published on the Company’s website and are also available upon written

request to the company secretary.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
(committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the audit committee met three times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditors, considered and approved the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors; reviewed
the half-year and annual financial statements of the Group, including integrity
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein, before
submission to the Board for approval; discussed with the external auditors
the nature and scope of the audit before commencement; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and met the external

auditors without the presence of executive board members of the Company.

The audit committee also took initiative in agreeing with the external auditors
on the scope and extent of interim review before commencement and
ensuring the Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of

external auditors to supply non-audit services to the Group.
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BERZEGREHESZ ZHNT ¢

Audit Committee (Continued)

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESBRE FERLESRRY

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AESKE(ZEESTE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
BEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 3/3
SRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
PEB A Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
ST Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3

% £o
A EB EE 12 Internal Control

EEGRHARRAN A EPEEHIE R ARE H A
BE - ARRIEHIERFMESR  BEEEER
E%WEﬁWIRTWE%iEE?ﬁ$%$Q

AIGFHRBRBNZERT  MBERERENEST
HEAHNER - MW&&W BRILASN - BTHIA
e BEERRETDBEATE - Al - %%
BFEMEREERD RENREELRREEE
AARFBERELEMEEME MRS E
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The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2011. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions. Based on the result of the review, the Board
considers that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget are adequate. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which has to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state of
the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 36 to 118.
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Location

B &5
NBERDHBRCES T =5
(NLEEMIER 74255K)
iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

IHETERE
HTABER - —BABER KR

HRLT ~ L2 L3R 4= EL
NEBELRAE —AZ0R
(BIEANHEL 2257 )

Good Luck Industrial Building

Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor,
and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,
105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

18  Tian Teck Land Limited XE#ESRA A

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$1,252,195,000
(2010 (restated): HK$2,798,066,000) have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The Board now recommends a final dividend of HK$0.17 per share for the
year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil). With this proposed final dividend, it
will make a total distribution of HK$0.17 per share for the year (2010: Nil), as
no interim dividend was paid during the year.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$115,000 (2010: HK$8,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

REAE HEFH
Existing use Term of lease
[EES H A
Commercial Medium
TI5RIFER H A
Workshops and car parking spaces Medium



TEEE®) Fixed Assets (continued)
HERSERNEEY @) Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
(Continued)

Hb B RERAZE HEFH

Location Existing use Term of lease

HFETHEPL BROIZE - FBRER H R
T g SR
RV EZNAB\BZ/\HR
G NVRE A X6 78055 )
Goodluck Industrial Centre Showrooms, car parking Medium
Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, spaces and car workshops
808 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

BXEEE S0 [EHES =5
hig

HETHBR =2 THRK

EWER T —E-+=5%

(/8551 ER3665%)

Euro Trade Centre Commercial Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No.366)

HZES i NES o H]
NE—ZE e

HR R N T S [

BRABE=1T=9%

Yi An Plaza Office Medium
Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,

No. 33 Jianshe 6 Road,

Yuexiu District,

Guangzhou,

PRC
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Sim Lam, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Yau Allen
Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen shall retire from the board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, for an initial period of two years effective on
1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the said period unless

and until either party gives to the other three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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EIEE Cheong Hooi Hong
$EIEA Cheong Kheng Lim
e Cheong Keng Hooi
fEpegea) Cheong Sim Lam
EEre Cheong Chong Ling
AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2011, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(“Model Code”):

(@ The Company

SREERY%0.25 T2 RHAEE

Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
HE#T
BRPHEE
PN £ XEER NEER WESL
% of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
4,625,792 - - 4,625,792 0.97%
46,023,872 115,292 - 46,139,164 9.72%
26,862,036 1,002,384 - 27,864,420 5.87%
1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%
412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
2,000 - 115,200 117,200 0.02%

(¥) (Note)

3 ARMERTE115,2000% BRREAR A B
B #9115,2008% (&7 ° BIZESH M - 5%ER
SR ARE L ERDER -

Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be

interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EENESTHAEEEY Interests and Short Positions of Directors and

=

IR - HERMOMEEH WL  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

P/

SK A .
KRE @) and Debentures (continued)
(b) S\EEEIFREEAR DR (b) Associated International Hotels Limited
BREEBEITZ2EEREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HERT
BaER ROBH
BARER REER NG e WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
SRR Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 - 25,589,715 7.11%
B Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 - 12,035,119 3.34%
SEAAE Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 - 1,831,155 0.51%
$EIRYS Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 - - 1,588,000 0.44%
JEAE R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 - 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(3£) (Note)
o AFIERTE120,0000% ARBEA R A T AT Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
A H120,00008 F AR o RIBFFHEG] - 18R shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
FEWRARE LSRN to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
(c) AustinHills Country Resort Bhd. (¢) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

BREESRADTITZEEREE

Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each

HE BT

BEER RAD 4B E

B AR e HNEDL
Total % of total

Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued

interests interests interests interests shares

B4 Cheong Sim Lam - 3 - 3 0.00003%

22 Tian Teck Land Limited X &t EHR A7



EEREETHRAEBEAWN
fzip - HER O MEEZNER
&/K B (&)

(d REBRAF

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

BREEREI T2EEREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each

HE T

IRAD 4%

BAER KEERS AER ] HWEZL

Total % of total

Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued

interests interests interests interests shares

SEIEE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 - - 25 25%

SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25 - - 25 25%

sEIRE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 - - 25 25%

fiikedey) Cheong Sim Lam 25 - - 25 25%
e) mEEBRAF (e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited

SRR Cheong Hooi Hong
$BIE AR Cheong Kheng Lim
S ImE Cheong Keng Hooi
B4 Cheong Sim Lam

BREEEBE I TZEBREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each

HE#T

BEES RAD B2

PN £ KEES By HWESL
Total % of total

Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
10 - - 10 0.00005%

10 - - 10 0.00005%

10 - - 10 0.00005%

10 - - 10 0.00005%

B B ETiRFR &SN - R R RIERE S G HI 55352
ERE BTN ELEMER  SIRRIZETAIUE
AR BARABREZMELNER - BT
—F=A=+—H ' ARAEER&ESTTBAE
REBEA (R MR ER)DRBEREEARD
A EARE A E (AR A BHEH BXVIFTE A E
F2)HNRG - BERONEEEOESIONE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2011, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been

notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

BREE

7B#0.257T HE BITRAD

2RO EE BEHNEIL
Number

of shares Percentage of

of HK$0.25 total issued

each shares

KEHR AT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%

SBIBMK Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%
(+£1) (Note 1)

B Cheong Keng Hooi 27,864,420 5.87%
(i2) (Note 2)

B i Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(3£3) (Note 3)

ME= Wu Soo Huei 27,864,420 5.87%
(3F4) (Note 4)

i Notes:

©) SEIEMR ST A A 2 46,139,164 8% A% (7 7R #946,023,872
EhEEMEEEAREE - 1152028 AEAE
MEBLZLHE -

@  EMEBLAEA 227,864,420 8% B0 £926,862,036
[ BiEmE L A EAFE - 1,002,384 Al B E AL S
MEELZ LA -

@) ME B A 246,139,164 %087 #9115,292%
AMBBLZTEARZE © 46,023,872 A A HE B
B ERA -

@)  WEELZLTHA 227,864,420 0% 8% (5 £91,002,384
AR EELZEAEE - 26,862,0360% Al AEHALE
BB -

BLEMpriEEEN R ——F=A=+—
B - AR E R A G B H BB RE 5
{52 33615 M A BT B L MR AR B F4E
B R SRR
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(1) Out of the 46,139,164 shares in which Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is interested,
46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim himself, and 115,292
shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

() Out of the 27,864,420 shares in which Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is interested,
26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi himself, and 1,002,384
shares were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

) Out of the 46,139,164 shares in which Ms Lim Yoke Soon is interested, 115,292
shares were held by Ms Lim Yoke Soon herself, and 46,023,872 shares were
held by her spouse, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim.

(4) Out of the 27,864,420 shares in which Ms Wu Soo Huei is interested, 1,002,384
shares were held by Ms Wu Soo Huei herself, and 26,862,036 shares were held
by her spouse, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of
the Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@) Agreements exist between the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned subsidiary, whereby AIHL
agrees to provide administrative services (company secretarial) and
non-administrative services (office facilities and staff) to the Company
for an indefinite period. The aggregate fees paid to AIHL for the year
ended 31 March 2011 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2010:
HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
responsible for general building and property management (except for
the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE for an initial period of
2 years after the date of the occupation permit and the appointment
continues after the said period unless and until AIHL gives to the other
three months’ notice in writing. Manager’s remuneration of
HK$540,000 (2010: HK$353,000) was paid by AIHL for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the
Company and its Subsidiaries of its Listed
Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants

relating to specific performance of the controlling shareholders of AIHL.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HK$1 bilion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
AIHL has exercised the option as contained in the Facility Agreement to request
for the extension of the facilities for two additional years. The lending bank

has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to grant such an extension.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders of
the Company and AIHL, cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly,
at least 25% of the issued share capital of AIHL in accordance with the terms

of the Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the loans made

to AIHL under the Facility Agreement together with accrued interest.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

There are no changes in respect of the directors’ emoluments at the level of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 as compared with the
previous financial year. Changes in respect of the executive directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2011 are due to allowances for
expenses actually incurred by certain executive directors at the level of the
Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, and the policy regarding such expenses has

not changed.

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong and Mr Cheong Sim Lam have ceased to be the
directors of Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd. from
2 March 2011.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2011 are set out in notes 24 to 26 to the financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is

to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 64, has been the Chairman and a director of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and
1984 respectively. He is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group.
Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the
Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has
extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 62, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been the
Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels Limited
since 1984. He is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding

Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group.
He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors continued)

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 58, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 52, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 31 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 40, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She was appointed as a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited effective from 1 January 2007. She is
the Chief Administration Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of

Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director, and is also the
niece of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi and

Cheong Sim Lam.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 75, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and 1985
respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of
Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam
Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home
Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the Urban Council

and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 83, has been
a director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
1993 and 1988 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from 1988 to 1995,
Chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
Chairman of the Urban Renewal Authority. He is also a member of the Court
of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and an independent

non-executive director of another listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience in accounting and
finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Chow is an independent

non-executive director of another listed company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He
qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and
solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of
Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong

Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He currently also serves on the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr Tse is a
veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and
Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs Stephen Lo & P. Y.

Tse, Solicitors since 1987.
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Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 60, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss Chan
was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She has

over 31 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 54, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 41, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, ACCA, aged 42, is accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in 2008,
Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field of

accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 36 to 118, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2011, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLFE(LAB%R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011 2010
(E#HR)
(restated)
Tt T
$°000 $'000
HELE Continuing operation
= 2] Turnover 3 382,630 128,053
BRFEA AN Cost of services (80,367) (41,228)
EX Gross profit 302,263 86,825
H A Other revenue 6 3,476 2,519
HAbWeas 558 Other net income 6 9,967 844
BEYEGERT Valuation gains on investment properties 15(a) 788,239 2,751,304
THER Administrative expenses (36,846) (85,720)
Feg =gl Profit from operations 1,067,099 2,805,772
TN Finance costs 7(a) (9,175) (4,325)
BB AT F Profit before taxation 7 1,057,924 2,801,447
FriS#i Income tax 10(a) (8,223) (8,747)
REFELSE ZXRFERR Profit for the year from
continuing operation 1,049,701 2,792,700
gl cd = Discontinued operation
RELRIEBE ZRFERF Profit for the year from
discontinued operation 5(a) 202,494 5,366
REERR Profit for the year 11 1,252,195 2,798,066
THA L : Attributable to:
NS e Equity shareholders of the Company 11
— BEKE — Continuing operation 539,814 1,410,568
— R — Discontinued operation 101,264 2,684
641,078 1,413,252
I AR AR SR 2 Non-controlling interests
— g — Continuing operation 509,887 1,382,132
— R PR - Discontinued operation 101,230 2,682
611,117 1,384,814
REERF Profit for the year 1,252,195 2,798,066
BREFN —EXAREE Earnings per share - basic and diluted 14
FELE Continuing operation $1.14 $2.97
R IR Discontinued operation $0.21 $0.01
$1.35 $2.98

FABEEF AN EBAMBHRERN—35 - The notes on pages 43 to 118 form part of these financial statements.

BN EE SR A TR TR B B 2S5 Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
HRH2 attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 12.
SHY R °
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-Z——F=A=1+—-HBLFE (LB R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011 2010
(ER)
(restated)
T Tt
$°000 $'000
REE R F Profit for the year 1,252,195 2,798,066
AEEHMZEBRA (R Other comprehensive income for the year
BERKEFSEAER) (after tax and reclassification
adjustments):
BREFING BN R B TSRk Exchange differences on translation of
FREEMER Z5E financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries 22,456 30,243
A EERES Available-for-sale equity securities:
AR BERBZEFE net movement in fair value reserve 13 2,234 1,415
HEtyEEHAS Surplus on revaluation of other properties 15(a) 16,884
41,574 31,658
AEEZHERAELE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,293,769 2,829,724
THIALHER : Attributable to:
FERAR R Equity shareholders of the Company 662,985 1,429,791
IEE Hxl&%% Non-controlling interests 630,784 1,399,933
AEEZHEKRAELE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,293,769 2,829,724

SE43EEF S ANM B A BRKR A —D

The notes on pages 43 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
R=—ZFB——F=A=+—H(LB%ZIR) At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

by 1| YN
The Group The Company
i i N i N N
20114 2010F 2009%F 20114 2010F 2009%F
3A31H 3H31H 4A18 3A31H 3H31H 4A18
At At At At At At
31 March 31 March Vel 31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(&%) (EHR) (&%) (E%5)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
T T Fr T T T
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $/000
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 15
—REYE - Investment properties 10,073,812 9,229,784 6,104,910 182,300 159,400 137,500
—EhE  BERBE - Other properties, plant and equipment 102,913 130,398 237,922 - - -
10,176,725 9,360,182 6,342,832 182,300 159,400 137,500
KB AR MR Interest in subsidiaries 16 - - - 245,481 239,154 235,053
i EERES Available-for-sale equity securities 17 5,199 2,970 1,369 - - -
BEEHIBEE Deferred tax assets 10(d) 242 8,074 16,179 - - -
10,182,166 9,371,226 6,360,380 427,781 398,554 372,553
 gmEE Cumentassets
IE3y Inventories - - 203 - - -
[EWERT 312 Accounts receivable, deposits and
SR prepayments 18 56,621 53,257 10,264 427 369 523
REEW AR Current tax recoverable 10(c) 372 106 58 164 106 58
BEARITER Pledged bank deposits 19 502,768 159,802 2,226 - - -
BERBRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 899,151 409,333 450,421 6,366 6,215 5,106
1,458,912 622,498 463,172 6,957 6,690 5,687
PERBEFEN Assets of a disposal group classified as
REAREE held for sale 5(0) - 291,757 - - - -
1,458,912 914,255 463,172 6,957 6,690 5,687
N Curentliabilites
PIER—HEA Bank loan - secured 24 200,000 - - - - -
Hi AR ESER Other payables and accruals 21 146,380 204,353 207467 861 1,100 1,189
RS Deposits received 22 131,327 101,139 7,966 996 1,000 2,146
RERBEERE Provision for long service payments 23 1,370 1,399 1,774 - - -
BETEAIE Obligations under finance leases 25 4 31 73 - - -
REERAEH Current tax payable 10(c) 17 20 86 - - -
479,135 306,942 217,366 1,857 2,100 3,335
PERBEFEN Liabilties of a disposal group classified as
REMAEE held for sale 5(c) - 5,509 - - - -
479,135 312,451 217,366 1,857 2,100 3,335
RBEETE Net current assets 979,777 601,804 245,806 5,100 4,590 2,352
BEAERRDER Total assets less current liabilities 11,161,943 9,973,030 6,606,186 432,881 403,144 374,905
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The Group The Company
201145 2010F 2009F 20114 2010F 2009F
3A31AH 3H31H 4R18 3A31H 3H31H 4R1R8
At At At At At At
31 March 31 March V.o 31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(E®) (%) (24) (%)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (CHEC)
T T T T Tr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities

PIER—HEA Bank loan - secured 24 1,000,000 1,105,000 568,000 - - -
JER BB Government lease premiums payable 2 2,240 2,284 2327 = - =
BLATREAIE Obligations under finance leases 25 120 114 - - - -
EEREAE Deferred tax liabilities 10(d) 1,001 819 768 730 819 768
HEiBas Other financial liabilities - - 2 - - =
1,003,361 1,108,217 571,097 730 819 768
EERE NET ASSETS 10,158,582 8,864,813 6,035,089 432,151 402,325 374,137

BERRRE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
& Share capital 27(b) 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
il Reserves 5074304 4411319 2,981,528 313,468 283,642 255,454
5192987 4,530,002 3,100,211 432,151 402,325 374,137
FERRRES Non-controlling interests 4,965,595 4,334,811 2,934,878 = - -
ERHBE TOTAL EQUITY 10,158,582 8,864,813 6,035,089 432,151 402,325 374,137

EFEFEeRN _ET——FNAZFN\BZRELFHFA] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June
B o 2011,

2 =2 CheongHooiHong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE SEEM Director Director

FAZEZF8EMM B AN BRERN—E 5 ° The notes on pages 43 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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meEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLFE(LAB%R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NARERRESL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

A *ER
Be  RGORE EfiRE NERE EERE E5RG  REE 5 RER
Non-

Share Share Revaluation Exchange Fair value Capital  Retained controlling

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings Total interests
Mtz T T T T T n T T T
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

200954 10 #9484 Balance at 1 April 2009 118,683 3147 747179 (2,583) 434 63,292 1,797,277 2,727,429 2,679,911 5,307,340
SHRREGNYE  Impactof change in
accounting policy 209) - - 145329 - - — 227453 372,782 364967 727,749

#200964A1H%  Restated balance at
BHLEH 1 April 2009 118,683 3147 892,508 (2,589) 434 63292 2,024,730 3,100211 2,934,878 6,035,089

REERERE: Changes in equity for

the year:
RERRF(ER) Profit for the year (restated) - - - - - - 1413262 1413262 1,384,814 2,798,066
EZERA Other comprehensive income - - - 7,524 1,415 7,600 - 16,539 15,119 31,658

2EMAEE(ER)  Total comprehensive income
(restated) - - - 7,524 1,415 7600 1413252 1429791 1,399,933 2,829,724

2010637318 Restated balance at
R2010548108 31 March 2010 and
Efite 1 April 2010 118,683 3,147 892,508 4,94 1,849 70,892 3,437,982 4,530,002 4,334,811 8,864,813

REERERE: Changes in equity for

the year:
KEEHH Profit for the year - - - - - - 641,078 641,078 611,117 1,252,195
E2ERA Other comprehensive income - - 8,443 5,323 2,234 5,907 - 21,907 19,667 41,574
PEMANES Total comprehensive income - - 8,443 5,323 2,234 5907 641,078 662,985 630,784 1,293,769

#2011£3A83184  Balance at 31 March 2011
o3 118,683 3,147 900,951 10,264 4,083 76,799 4,079,060 5,192,987 4,965,595 10,158,582

FAZEEF 8NN EBAMEHREN—ID - The notes on pages 43 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-Z——F=A=1+—-HBLFE (LB R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

gaEg

BRE A

-+ 25 47 M
—HELE

—# e

HEEE

—HBHA

—RERK

—hE
—BEANREERN
—HAtEHEEEEM

— eI HEREEF R

— A HERERESORERSE

—REEEAE(EN) /BRI
— EAEFOREMA
—INEER B A

LEESRPALLERN

Gy
BRI - 372 R

A th RS R R B R
RE Gl

ARG ERERD
FERTER AT B D

REXBHRENRS
ERHE
—EREEEH
—EEIMUE
—ENTERR

BEEBENRERE

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
—Continuing operation
-Discontinued operation

Adjustmentsfor:

—Interestincome

—Finance costs

—Depreciation

-Valuation gains oninvestment properties

—Reversal ofimpairment loss in respect of other
properties

-Gainondisposal of available-for-sale
equity securities

-Impairment loss on available-for-sale
equity securities

-Net (gain)/loss ondisposal of fixed assets

- Dividend income from listed securities

—Foreignexchange gains

Operating profit before changes
inworking capital
Decrease ininventories
Increase in accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments
Increase in other payables and accruals
Increase in deposits received
Decreasein provision for long service payments
Decrease in government lease premiums payable

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

—Hong Kong profits tax paid
-Qverseas tax paid

-PRCtaxpaid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2011
Tr T
$000 $000
1,057,924 2,801,447
202,495 5,370
1,260,419 2,806,817
(3,397) (2,189)
9,175 4,338
6,658 8,910
(788,239) (2,751,304)
- (4,145)
@ _
5 39
(203,837) 6
(50) 31
(1,123) (812)
(980,815) (2,745,188)
279,604 61,629
244 -
(582) (45,068)
23,448 23,293
26,780 95,974
(29) (375)
(44) 43
49,817 73,781
329,421 135,410
(264) (480)
(6) ()
(209) (224
(479) (709)
328,942 134,701
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-ZT——F=A=+—HBILEE(UBE%5|’R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011
T T
$000 $000
RETH Investing activities
BUH 2 Interest received 2,932 2,335
BAETEENR(TEEREYE) Paymentfor purchase of fixed assets other than
investment properties (1,861) (13,081)
BEMETHAT Payment for expenditure on investment
properties (100,484) (534,436)
REETEEMS ?KIE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 511,794 27
BARNHNEREER Payment for purchase of available-for-sale
equity securities - (225)
BMERE Dividends received 50 31
BRI TR Increase n pledged bank deposits (342,966) (157,576)
HEREHEEERESMGIE  Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
equity securities 7 -
REFBHFAE/(FTA)MEEFE  Netcashgenerated from/(usedin)
investing activities 69,472 (702,925)
MEED Financing activities
ENBERERSNEASS Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (35) (90)
ENBERERSNFIEHS Interest element of finance lease rentals paid - (13)
BRBFHER S Interest paid on government lease premiums
payable (115) 117
ROTERFBIE Proceeds frombankloan 95,000 537,000
ERRITERHE Interest paid on bank loan (7,600) (7,687)
EREMEERA Other borrowing costs paid (160) (499)
RETEMENELTE Net cash generated from financing activities 87,090 528,594
HeRBSZEYEN/ Netincrease/(decrease)in cashand
(RD) 28 cash equivalents 485,504 (39,630)
$2010/20095481A##H&K  Cashandcashequivalents
HEZEY at1 April2010/2009 411,814 450,421
IMNEEREBHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes 1,833 1,023
RIBIANELRRELSEY Cashand cashequivalents
at31March 899,151 411,814
R : Represented by:
£ Continuing operation 899,151 409,333
Sl Discontinued operation - 2,481
899,151 411,814
FASHE = F8EM M EB AR BHREN — 5 The notes on pages 43 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB ¥ 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
(see note 1(v)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA#%&%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)(i), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(d)

Available-for-sale equity securities
The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable

transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, at each balance sheet date
the fair value of these investments is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from these investments is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(q)(iii). When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(j)(i), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from

equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the

Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(q)(i).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e

Investment properties (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(g).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and impairment losses

(see note 1(i)(ii).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(9) Leased assets (Continued)

@

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i

(i

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in
fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1()(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(g)).
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(h)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years

after the date of completion

Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years
and equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
accounts and other receivables
Investments in equity securities and accounts and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention to the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(j)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii).
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

For accounts and other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment losses of bad and
doubtful debts are measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
other properties, plant and equipment may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair values less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value

less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

0)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

K)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(i)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

(0)

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(e), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the balance sheet date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

()

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and

costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

V)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation

is recognised when the relevant services are provided.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at

the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at

the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies continued)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

()

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over

the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item

reported in the financial statements, are identified from the

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most

senior executive management for the purposes of allocating

resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for

(u)

financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar

economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the

nature of products and services, the nature of production

processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used

to distribute the products or provide the services, and the

nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments

which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation

@

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that

will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
above criteria for classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-

controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(v) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (Continued)

)

(i

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)
Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see () above), if earlier. It also
occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income
statement, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the

Group’s financial statements:

- HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

- HKAS 27 (revised 2008), Consolidated and separate financial

Statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations — plan to sell the controlling

interest in a subsidiary
- Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

- HK(FRIC) Interpretation 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to

owners

- HK Interpretation 5, Presentation of financial statements —
classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a

repayment on demand clause

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period, with the exception
of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair
value under HKAS 40, Investment property, and non-depreciable
assets measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted by the

amendments, the Group has decided to adopt the amendments early.
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(@

Early adoption of the amendments to

HKAS 12, Income taxes

The change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS 12
is the only change which has had a material impact on the
current and comparative periods. As a result of this change in
policy, the Group now measures any deferred tax liability in
respect of its investment properties with reference to the tax
liability that would arise if the properties were disposed of at
their carrying amounts at the balance sheet date, unless the
property is depreciable and is held within the business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time rather than through
sale. Previously, where these properties were held under
leasehold interests, deferred tax was generally measured using
the tax rate that would apply as a result of recovery of the

asset’s value through use.

The Group’s revaluation reserve includes hotel properties
revaluation surpluses recognised in prior years. The hotel was
previously measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16
and has been redeveloped into ISQUARE. The amendments to
HKAS 12 require that deferred tax arising from a non-
depreciable asset measured using the revaluation model in
HKAS 16 shall reflect the tax consequences of recovering the

carrying amount of the underlying asset through sale.

This change in policy has been applied retrospectively by
restating the opening balances at 1 April 2009 and 2010, with
consequential adjustments to comparatives for the year ended
31 March 2010. This has resulted in a reduction in the amount
of deferred tax provided on valuation gains as follows:
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies continued)

ZE8) (@)

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2010

Income tax
Profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company
Profit for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests
Earnings per share — basic and diluted

Consolidated balance sheet
at 31 March 2010

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests
Revaluation reserve

Consolidated balance sheet
at 1 April 2009

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests
Revaluation reserve

As previously

reported
Tr
$000

(462,044)

1,184,758

1,160,011
$2.50

861
(1,174,652)
2,982,035
3,755,041

747,179

1,286
(713,624)

1,797,277

2,579,911
747,179

B (BBE
ZRHI) #125E1
BT E
Effect of
adoption of
amendments
to HKAS 12
T

$000

453,297

228,494

224,803
$0.48

7,213
1,173,833
455,947
579,770
145,329

14,893
712,856
227,453
354,967
145,329

Early adoption of the amendments to

HKAS 12, Income taxes (Continued)
The Group

As restated
T
$°000

(8,747)

1,413,252

1,384,814
$2.98

8,074
(819)
3,437,982
4,334,811
892,508

16,179
(768)
2,024,730
2,934,878
892,508
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2 EHEBENEH @ 2 Changes in Accounting Policies continued)

(a) RERME BRI (@) Early adoption of the amendments to
F1255 BB IFEET @) HKAS 12, Income taxes (Continued)
P/ N/NC] The Company

B (BBEE
2RI) E125%H

BT
Effect of

adoption of

As previously amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
T Fr T
$000 $°000 $000

R-ZZ—ZFHF=H=+—H Balance sheet at 31 March 2010

HWEERER
BEREHEEE Deferred tax liabilities (22,125) 21,306 (819)
R Retained earnings 259,189 21,306 280,495

REZZEENFNA—H Balance sheet at 1 April 2009

WEEBEBR
BEEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities (18,460) 17,692 (768)
RE R Retained earmnings 234,615 17,692 252,307
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies continued)

(b)

Other changes in accounting policies as a
result of developments in HKFRSs

The issuance of HK Interpretation 5 has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the Interpretation was

consistent with the policy already adopted by the Group.

The rest of the above developments have resulted in changes
in accounting policies but none of these changes in policies
have a material impact on the current or comparative periods

for the following reasons:

- The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 27, HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 17
have not yet had a material effect on the Group’s
financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction (for example, a business combination, a
disposal of a subsidiary or a non-cash distribution) and
there is no requirement to restate the amounts recorded

in respect of previous such transactions.

- The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect
of recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and
HKAS 27 (in respect of allocation of losses to
non-controlling interests (previously known as minority
interest) in excess of their equity interest) have had no
material impact as there is no requirement to restate the
amounts recorded in previous periods and no such

deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current year.

- The amendment introduced by the Improvements to
HKFRSs (2009) omnibus standard in respect of HKAS
17, Leases, did not result in a change of classification of

the Group’s leasehold land interests.
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Turnover
The principal activity of the Group is property investment after the
Group’s golf and recreational club operation has been classified as

discontinued operation as set out in note 5.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

2011
T
$°000
BERE Continuing operation
REERNBRASIA Gross rentals from investment properties 382,630 128,053
Fla <4 Discontinued operation

SRS ES
gl A (Fi5E5(a))

Revenue from golf and recreational club

operation (note 5(a)) 17,010 17,246

FHT
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S—ARENEIMERE INEH

ENAREMEHENKANEETREE
BRREARKMBE(THE])  MAKE
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Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by segments which are organised
by business lines and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified two reportable
segments, namely “Property leasing” and “Golf and recreational club
operation”. The golf and recreational club operation has been
classified as discontinued operation and the related information has
been set out in note 5. The information regarding continuing operation
as presented in the consolidated income statement represents the

information of the other reportable segment, property leasing.

Geographical information presents similar information as the Group’s
revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), while the Group’s
revenue and results of the golf and recreational club operation were
primarily derived from Malaysia. Therefore, no separate geographical

information is presented.
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Tian Teck Land Limited X&EithEHR A A

Disposal Group and Discontinued
Operation

On 11 December 2009, the Directors made an announcement stating
that certain subsidiaries had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of the Group’s
properties located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land,
the golf resort which is situated on the golf course land, the
condominium land and the bungalow land (together referred to as the
“Properties”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately
MYR204,582,000 (equivalent to HK$508,531,000 at 2 March 2011).

Upon completion of the disposal of the Properties, the Group’s golf
and recreational club operation would cease. Accordingly, all the
assets and liabilities related to the operation including the Properties
were classified as held for sale and the operation was therefore
classified as discontinued operation. No impairment loss was

recognised on reclassification of the assets as held for sale.

The disposal of the Properties was completed on 2 March 2011 and

the Group’s golf and recreational club operation ceased thereafter.



5
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REERLFERLES

Disposal Group and Discontinued
Operation (continued)
(@ The results of the discontinued operation for

EE/WT : the current and prior years are as follows:
ERARELERE
Golf and recreational club operation
2011
T
$°000
EEX Turnover 3 17,010 17,246
AR7%,$HE A Cost of services/sales (11,554) (15,631)
EX Gross profit 5,456 1,615
E A A Other revenue 1,623 6,599
Hitblezk,/(B598)/%%  Other net income/(loss) 100 (39)
BEEEFEEERN Gain on disposal of fixed assets 203,831 6
EF R EEEE D Reversal of impairment loss in
respect of other properties 15(a) - 4,145
HEEHR Selling expenses (544) (600)
1THE A Administrative expenses (7,971) (6,343)
rERR Profit from operations 202,495 5,383
BEKA Finance costs - (13)
R %% A2 R Profit before taxation 202,495 5,370
Frfg®t Income tax (1) @)
REERA Profit for the year 202,494 5,366
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5 BREHESRAIERZEm

5 Disposal Group and Discontinued

Operation (Continued)

b) REER EFERIEZEH (b) The cash flows of the discontinued
HEREWT - operation for the current and prior years are

as follows:

EHRARELERE

Golf and recreational club operation

2011
FTr
$000

e EE (FTA) Fise Net cash (used in)/generated from

R FE operating activities (514,467) 75
W& EBFE, (B8 Net cash generated from/(used in)

WM FRE investing activities 511,986 (99)
RMETDMANRSFER Net cash used in financing activities - (93)
REREFHE Net cash flows (2,481) 117)

) EHAREHAILENETE (c) The major classes of assets and liabilities
EEHEEBENT comprising the golf and recreational club

operation are as follows:

2011
FTr
$000

PEABESEN Assets of a disposal group
EBEASEE classified as held for sale
ETEE Fixed assets - 286,900
rE Inventories - 228
FEIERFR « 3] & RIBMR Accounts receivable, deposits
and prepayments - 2,147
INERREML IS A Current tax recoverable - 1
Be RREEED Cash and cash equivalents - 2,481
- 291,757
PEABEFEN Liabilities of a disposal group
EBEASEE classified as held for sale
FERTERR - BN Accounts payable, other payables
fEETE F and accruals = 2,348
BUET£ Deposits received = 3,160
HtyigasE Other financial liabilities = 1
- 5,509
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6 HMRAKRKZZEEE 6 Other Revenue and Net Income

2011
T
$°000
Hig A Other revenue
F 2 WA Interest income 3,074 2,085
MAEEIEI A Dividend income from listed securities 50 31
Hth Others 352 403
3,476 2,519
Hit =88 Other net income
RERETEEN,(E8)F5 Net gain/(oss) on disposal of fixed assets 6 (12)
A ERERS B AMRIERE  Impairment loss on available-for-sale
equity securities (5) (39)
SNECTE SRR 3R Net foreign exchange gains 9,959 895
HEH L E#SES Transfer from equity on disposal
e Ezs of available-for-sale equity securities 7 -
9,967 844
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BRBE A&

7  Profit Before Taxation

BREADEA B (GEA) EEBIT - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
HHENEBERFED R S (GTA) @K amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this note

LFR RS -

(@ ®BEXE (a)

e B HLE RS

include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation.

2011
T
$000

Finance costs

Interest on government lease premiums

payable 115 117

BE M ERIENIIEE A Finance charges on obligations under
finance leases - 13
IRITERF B Interest on bank loan 8,920 6,536
HABEERA Other borrowing costs 140 379
BER AL Total borrowing costs 9,175 7,045

o IIAEERENE R Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
b Eak A~ property under redevelopment * - (2,707)
9,175 4,338

®E : Attributable to:
BB Continuing operation 9,175 4,325
4R (MI5E5() Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) = 13
9,175 4,338
* —E - EEMNEERADIREE0.25%E K * The borrowing costs were capitalised at a rate of 0.25% per annum in
Ik - 2010.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A &



BRIZAD &R () 7  Profit Before Taxation (continued)

BREADEF IR (GFA) RERENT - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
HHENEBERFEDR S (GEA) @R amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this note
IFEEREEE - () include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation. (Continued)

2011
Fr
$°000
b) BIRK (b)  Staff costs
FEHFERIKET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,492 846
e TEREMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 42,997 34,808
44,489 35,654
(c) HAEE (c)  Otheritems
SEYEMES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (382,630) (128,053)
o B Less: Direct outgoings 80,367 41,228
(302,263) (86,825)
KEHEER Operating lease charges:
=EAEREE minimum lease payments
—WERE — property rentals 361 1,250
FENER R (B E B R Reversal of impairment losses
on accounts receivable (713) (266)
FERAR Cost of inventories
(BIEfFEWE212,0007T (including write off of inventories
(20104 : 48)) of $212,000 (2010: Nil) 1,875 1,624
ZEEE Auditor’s remuneration
— ZERTE - audit services 1,063 951
— MR — tax services 223 172
— H b R#% — other services 314 267
e Depreciation 6,658 8,910
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8 EEME 8 Directors’ Remuneration
RIEBBCR THEDYE 161651 2 H) E= = Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
W0 : Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

e EH EAR 2011
EEZHE KBYAZ BETEAL sHEIftR ko]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
T T Tr T Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HITES Executive Directors
EIE)E Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,575 700 - 2,375
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,121* 700 18 3,939
$EMmE Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,628 300 - 2,028
feede) Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,443 300 - 1,843
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 100 831 120 18 1,069
FHTES Non-executive Directors
JEAERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
2ER Lau Wah Sum 100 550 - - 650
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
AES Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
k=R Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 - = - 170
1,550 9,698 2,120 36 13,404
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8 EEMEw 8 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
RIEF B THEDYE 161651 R )&= S Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

ST (8) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

e E=R RIR
REYFz= BIRETEAL FHEMERR
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions
FIT T T Tt
$000 $000 $000 $000
BITES Executive Directors
iEEE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,529 700 - 2,329
SEIEMR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,929* 700 18 3,747
EimE Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,652 300 - 2,052
fepede) Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,443 300 - 1,843
ERR Cheong Chong Ling 100 788 120 18 1,026
FHITES Non-executive Directors
AR R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
R Lau Wah Sum 100 550 - - 650

BIKEHTES Independent Non-executive

Directors
AZE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - _ 340
k5 Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 _ _ _ 170
1,550 9,441 2,120 36 13,147
i EBB T RBNEEAE L RIET RN * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
BF - fEATHE S 47 3,066,000 T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(Z=—2=4 : 2,538,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,066,000 (2010: $2,538,000).
9 EaMEAL 9 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
TEEFER-E——FERAUGRaHNEN The five highest paid individuals for 2010 and 2011 are all directors of
ATHAEXRATINES  EEIE B 57K the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

A8 e
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10 PS8 10 Income Tax
(@ HEeBRRFIRNAERHE (a) Taxation in the consolidated income

- statement represents:

2011 2010
(ER)

(restated)
T Tt
$°000 $'000

B —EFRFEHR

Current tax - Hong Kong profits tax

REBIR — B RAP

Provision for the year - 368

Current tax — Overseas and PRC

R ERIE L Provision for the year 210 227

EEHIE Deferred tax

TEME N7 BENE Changes in fair value of investment properties 548 405

i = R E M ) Origination and reversal of temporary

differences 7,466 7,751
. 8014 8,156

8,224 8,751

*xE : Attributable to:

BB Continuing operation 8,223 8,747

E AR (MI7E5()) Discontinued operation (note 5(a) 1 4
8,224 8,751

EENBREBRIEAFEN G
JERFBLEFIIA16.6% ( —F—TF -
16.5% ) HITL KR ETH o BINHE QR
B IELAAERE RSB A IR TR R 5
H o PEFER LT EMBE B
RATEA R EATHE -

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries. PRC
taxation is calculated based on the applicable rate of taxation in
accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations of the
PRC.
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10 PT5% ) 10 Income Tax continued)

(b) FrE#ixZ HAIZRE ARG (b) Reconciliation between tax expense
BEEHafpEER and accounting profit at applicable tax
rates:

2011 2010
(E#)
(restated)
Fx Tt
$°000 $000
BB A A Profit before taxation 1,260,419 2,806,817
R PR AR R B SR 1S5 F A Notional tax on profit before taxation,
HAREERBIR calculated at the rates applicable to profits
SRR A ERE in the countries concerned 217,058 463,256
e E R ET e Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 20,193 1,477
DA SR E Tax effect of non-taxable income (205,592) (455,935)
AERERFEEZEMTIE Tax effect of temporary differences not
2 recognised (1,982) (149)
R B ARTERA Tax effect of unused tax losses not
BB EENEIETE recognised - 102
AEEFEANEFERN Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses
HEEENTIETE utilised this year (21,453) -
ERBES N Actual tax expense 8,224 8,751
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10 PS8t 10 Income Tax continued)
() BEEEBBRRNAHRE (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
BA represents:

rEH PN
The Group The Company

KNEEEBFIESF  Provision for Hong Kong

A profits tax for the year = 368 = 164
BT EHF SR Provisional profits tax paid (367) 471) (164) (270)
(367) (103) (164) (106)

N A B R IR Overseas and PRC taxation 12 17 - -
(355) (86) (164) (106)

INERFEUS FT1S TR Current tax recoverable (372) (108) (164) (108)
RERFEFTSHY Current tax payable 17 20 = -
(355) (86) (164) (106)
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10 FrS®iem 10 Income Tax continued)

d EERELEHEEEN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
afE: recognised:
() AEE )  The Group
BtreEEABRERNE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
R (EE) /B ENHEREE recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
DRARFEEBHIMT - movements during the year are as follows:

jiskihiel
RERERE e
WERER FERRE

Depreciation

Revaluation allowances
of investment in excess

and hotel of the related

properties depreciation Tax loss
T Tr Tr
$°000 $°000 $'000
RETHBIER Deferred tax
ELHIA arising from:
}A2009F4A1H At 1 April 2009
— A 2W — as previously reported 726,554 495 (14,711) 712,338
—RAEBEER]) - effect of adoption of the
F12RHE AT E amendments to HKAS 12 (727,749) - - (727,749)
—BEER - as restated (1,195) 495 (14,711) (15,411)
EE%HDI% (3t A)  Charged/(credited) to
(B3R) profit or loss (restated) 405 8,934 (1,183) 8,156
R201043A31H (EHR) At 31 March 2010 (restated) (790) 9,429 (15,894) (7,255)
R2010F4A1H At 1 April 2010
— AR — as previously reported 1,180,256 9,429 (15,894) 1,173,791
—RAEBEER]) - effect of adoption of the
F12MIETNEE amendments to HKAS 12 (1,181,046) = - (1,181,046)
—BER - as restated (790) 9,429 (15,894) (7,255)
EEHDI%, (31 A)  Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss 548 (6,042) 13,508 8,014
F2011£3A318 At 31 March 2011 (242) 3,387 (2,386) 759
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10 FrS®iem 10 Income Tax continued)
d EERELEHEEEN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
8fE @ recognised: (Continued)
iy ARFA (i) The Company
EEEEARERERNELTER The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
THB ERAEK D FARFE & the balance sheet and the movements during the year
EUpUNNE are as follows:

BB
mEwN
TERBE

Depreciation

allowances
Revaluation in excess

of investment  of the related

properties depreciation Tax loss
T Tr T
$°000 $°000 $'000
RETHBIER Deferred tax
ELHIA arising from:
#2009 4 A18 At 1 April 2009
— 2R — as previously reported 17,692 768 - 18,460
—RAEBEHER]) - effect of adoption of the
F12RMIETNEE amendments to HKAS 12 (17,692) - - (17,692)
—BER - as restated - 768 - 768
TEEEF R (ER) Charged to profit or loss
(restated) - 51 - 51
R2010%E3831H (E5) At 31 March 2010 (restated) - 819 - 819
R2010F4A1H At 1 April 2010
—UEZ2HR — as previously reported 21,306 819 - 22,125
—RAEBEER]) - effect of adoption of the
SR AT E amendments to HKAS 12 (21,306) - - (21,306)
—BER - as restated - 819 - 819
EEHDI%, (31 A)  Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss - 50 (139) (89)
R2011£3A318 At 31 March 2011 = 869 (139) 730
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10 PT5% ) 10 Income Tax continued)
O ERRELEHEEEM (d) Deferredtax assets and liabilities
8fE @ recognised: (Continued)

rEH PN
The Group The Company
PINRE:S 7220105 7A2009F IURESE 72010 720094
3A31H 3H31H 4518 3A31H 3H31H 4518
At At At At At At

31 March 31 March Vol 31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(EH) (EH) (EH) (E®H)

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

T T T T

$000 $000 i $000 $000

HEBEBER  Netdeferred tax assets

HERMIEIERTE  recognised on the

BEFH balance shests (242) (8,074) (16,179) - - -
FEBEEER  Netdeferred tax liabiliies

HERRIEILRLIE  recognised on the

BE¥E balance shests 1,001 819 768 730 819 768
759 (7255 (15,411) 730 819 768
(e) RERWIELBIEEE ! (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
IR0 FTE A %“ﬁﬂlﬁ CHER In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(0),
REETEEBORBaAENEER the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
B AR R E R @ ) T A SH B 18 & cumulative tax losses of $146,000,000 (2010: $146,000,000)
AENEREZR  NEERAKRRE for continuing operation and Nil (2010: $28,222,000) for
¥ 45 48 % 146,000,000 L ( —ZE — =& discontinued operation, and depreciation in excess of the
F : 146,000,0007T) 2K B 4% | Fag& related depreciation allowances of Nil (2010: $1,296,000) for
T (ZZE—FF : 28,222,0007T)K discontinued operation as it is not probable that future taxable
,ﬁw‘%% B RREREEES T profits against which the losses and the deductible temporary
(ZZ—ZF : 1,296,0007T ) K8 1B differences can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
HEEFTERTBENITERREENE jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
EFIEEE - RIBRITHE - BEM current tax legislation.

BEIE AR ERRE -
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11 QTSR REGRF 11 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders
of the Company
NEESERIE(L A 5N BIE—E2 %A The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
AN a5 K #929,826,000 L (ZE—F Company includes a profit of $29,826,000 (2010 (restated):
F(EHR) : 28,188,0007T) @ © $28,188,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of

the Company.

12 IRE 12 Dividends
@ XFEEMNLAAEZRRE (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
e the Company attributable to the year
2011
SEot
$°000
AEIREZSHERE No interim dividend declared and paid
(20104 : #) (2010: Nil) - _
REEBEREEREES Final dividend proposed
IR AREARR B &AR0.177T after the balance sheet date of
(2010%F : f=) $0.17 per share (2010: Ni 80,704 -
80,704 -
REEABRGEERERERD KRR The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
HREHATEEBBEREAEARER not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
RAfE-

b) BRE—VEHFEENSAF (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
REERER » WRAARFEEHE the Company attributable to the previous
REZAFHRE financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2011
T
$000

MEBA F—IIBEEHRE  No final dividend in respect of the previous
1% B A EHEME B S A+ financial year, approved and paid during
(2010%F : &) the year (2010: Nil) = -
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13 HitzEWA 13 Other Comprehensive Income

AL ERRES Available-for-sale equity securities
2011
Fr
$°000
REERNDHERA Changes in fair value recognised
AREEE during the year 2,236 1,376
EFHEAEDEABRER Reclassification adjustments for amounts
RIENRE - transferred to profit or loss:
J k=R Y= ey — Transfer from equity on disposal 7 -
— REEE — Impairment loss 5 39
2) 39
BAEHMEERAER Net movement in the fair value reserve
NAFEARREER during the year recognised
HEEEEE in other comprehensive income 2,234 1,415
n s : : :
14 SREBFN —EXKEE 14 Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted
BREABIRZRBAFEN R TERR The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
RS 4R 6 % 641,078,000 (Z & —F consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
F(FER) : 1,413,252,0007T) *+ EFEKE of $641,078,000 (2010 (restated): $1,413,252,000) represented by
B KR F £539,814,000 T (—E—F the profit from continuing operation of $539,814,000 (2010 (restated):
F(FE2R) : 1,410,568,0007C ) &K B 41 $1,410,568,000) and the profit from discontinued operation of
KSR A101,264,000T ( —ZZ—24F ¢ $101,264,000 (2010: $2,684,000), and 474,731,824 (2010:
2,684,0007T), R B B 1 THINR 9 474,731,824 474,731,824) shares in issue during the year. There were no potential
B ( —ZT—ZF @ 474,731,824 % ) 5t & - dilutive shares in existence in 2010 and 2011.
TEEERIT - —FUWEE T TR
1 e
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15 BElEEE

88

(@

15 Fixed Assets

rEH (@) The Group
REME Hiph¥ - BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
HEA
BEME HitiH3 Hin&EE et am
Properties
held for
leasing and
capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T Tr T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
R E Cost or valuation:
®2010F4A1H At 1 April 2010 9,229,784 141,824 20,468 162,292 9,392,076
ER AR Exchange adjustments 1,063 - - - 1,063
gyt Reclassification 39,500 (56,884) - (56,884) (17,384)
wE Additions 15,226 - 1,789 1,789 17,015
BE Disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
BfhEH% Surplus on revaluation - 16,884 - 16,884 16,884
ARBERE Fair value adjustments 788,239 - - - 788,239
#2011F3A831H At 31 March 2011 10,073,812 101,824 22,024 123,848 10,197,660
RE& Representing:
A Cost - 101,824 22,024 123,848 123,848
E—2011F Valuation - 2011 10,073,812 - - - 10,073,812
10,073,812 101,824 22,024 123,848 10,197,660
e - Accumulated depreciation:
R2010F4 817 At 1 April 2010 - 24,626 7,268 31,894 31,894
REEE Charge for the year - 3,520 3,138 6,658 6,658
R E D Written back on disposals = = (233) (233) (233)
EEival Reclassification - (17,384) - (17,384) (17,384)
©201153A31H At 31 March 2011 - 10,762 10,173 20,935 20,935
BREFE Net book value:
#2011%3A/31H At 31 March 2011 10,073,812 91,062 11,851 102,913 10,176,725
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15 BEEEE @) 15 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) AEE@ (@ The Group (Continued)

UES R - BERRE

Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment

HERFEL
ERHE S H A% AftEE At
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other Other
redevelopment  appreciation Sub-total properties assets Sub-total
i T T T i T
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000

RASGE Cost or valuation:

FA2009E4F18 At 1 Apri 2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 316,658 40,267 356,915 6,461,825
ERAE Exchange adjustments - 6,792 6,792 30,894 3,447 34,341 41,133
BERTYEEL  Transfer out from property

under redevelopment (8,550,000) 8,465,500 (84,500) 84,500 - 84,500 -
i Additions 513,600 - 513,600 - 13,236 13,236 526,836
PEABEFE  Rechssiied as held for sale - (62,322) (62,322) (290,228) (31,316) (321,544) (383,866)
RE Disposals - - - - (5,156) (5,156) (5,156)
AREERE Fair value adjustments 2,163400 587,904 2,751,304 - - - 2,751,304
2010537318 At31March 2010 - 9,209,784 9,209,784 141,824 20,468 162,292 9,392,076
& Representing:
R Cost - - - 141,824 20,468 162,292 162,292
fRE—2010%  Valuation-2010 - 9,229,784 9,209,784 - - - 9,209,784

- 9,229,784 9,209,784 141,824 20,468 162,292 9,392,076

ZiiRE Accumulated depreciation:
F2009%4F18 At 1 Apri 2009 - - - 81,462 37,531 118993 118993
ERAE Exchange adjustments - - - 6,967 3,257 10,224 10,204
REEHE Charge for the year - - - 7401 1,509 8910 8910
REBEM Written back on disposals - - - - (65,122 (5,122 (6,122)
DEBBARE  Reclassiied as held for sale - - - (67,059) (29,907) (96,966) (96,966)
HEEEEE Reversal of impairment loss - - - (4,145) - (4,145) (4,145)
#2010%3A31H At 31 March 2010 - - - 24,626 7,268 31,894 31,804
REFE Net book value:
201038318 At 31 March 2010 - 9,200,784 9,209,784 117,198 13,200 130,398 9,360,182
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15 EEEE @) 15 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) AT (b) The Company

REM*

Investment properties

{EE : Valuation:
#2010,200944 A1 H At 1 April 2010/2009 159,400 137,500
NAEBEAR Fair value adjustments 22,900 21,900
MR3A31H At 31 March 182,300 159,400
e g ~ - . .
() MEREFENIHAOT : () The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:
rEE PN
The Group The Company
2011
T
$°000
EES In Hong Kong
—RHHEE - Long leases 76,705 31,241 = -
—HHHEE — Medium-term leases 10,055,667 9,289,777 182,300 159,400
EBABEIN Outside Hong Kong
—hHiEE - Medium-term leases 32,502 25,964 - -
10,164,874 9,346,982 182,300 159,400
(d) RmArEER —ERAEBANDE (d)  During the year, the intended use of a property previously held
HAHERS  ZBAVEZERHRE for own use has been changed to leasing purpose. This
39,500,000 T (ENFZ B E R g # property with carrying amount of $39,500,000, being the fair
B2HzZARBE)EEMEA Hf value of the property at the date of change in use, was
MEIBAREMZE] - BiE - H transferred from “other properties” to “investment properties”
fih ¥ 3% & i Z1£2 16,884,000 7T ( =& accordingly. As a result of the transfer, a revaluation surplus of
—ZF B EREMEEKRAPE $16,884,000 (2010: Nil) on other properties has been
7R BB R FFTE IR B recognised in other comprehensive income. After deducting
R o B AR IR IHERAR RIS After deducti
8,441,000L( —F—FF : £ )% - non-controlling interests of $8,441,000 (2010: Nil), an amount
8,443,000 (=T —%F : M)ERN of $8,443,000 (2010: Nil) has been recognised in the
EHFEEARER - revaluation reserve.
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15 EEEE @)

(e)

RZZE——F=A=+—H &EY
XERBBRES  FEIETLHNE
TEE HFEIXAEMNETEMN -
BREZEZTON—ERERESN—
[E - Ett B uNEENHRE

BB —EBIERENETEN
RS (EEYEE o

RZBE——F=R=+—H " uUR&E
AMPENKRENERREE—HE
T EEGHEMEBTEEFHERE

RAR(EBRTAGBAEBNEMSS
BRGBZAR  AHREMGLZME
PRI E & P3R5 B 3T AR R 2 48
BRETTEM - BETIAERYMEZT

ERERGRMERR) - 2RTI5HE
URHEZR - RERBEBAT » #F

HEWABRMEA T ABLEmEE
AR RSWAIB I BERE S -

HivBEBEEM - KB
BHo

BERA

REAFEAN  ARBEUTORERE

BEMNHAERMEAS2,000T(=ZF

—Z4F 1 155,00070) - REEBER
HEH AEBURERSHFENHR

NERBEREFEA158,000L(ZF
—Z4F : 145,0007T) °

15 Fixed Assets (continued)

(e)

At 31 March 2011, investment properties comprise ISQUARE,
certain floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre, certain units of
Good Luck Industrial Building, a floor of Euro Trade Centre and
a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other properties comprise a floor of
iISQUARE, certain units of an industrial property, and two

residential properties in Hong Kong.

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC were
revalued at 31 March 2011 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers who have
among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued, on a market value basis in their
existing states by reference to comparable market transactions
and where appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net

rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

During the year, addition to office equipment of the Group
financed by new finance lease was $52,000 (2010: $155,000).
At the balance sheet date, the net book value of office
equipment held under finance leases of the Group was
$158,000 (2010: $145,000).
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15 EEEE @)

(h)

92

REBAKEHERHIREME -
EEHERVAMMFEETSF WA
EREEERTNREERS  ERME
BRI EFEE - HE-T—F
ZA=T—BIEFEREBERKXTER
R AR B 2 A 7,983,000 7T
(ZZF—Z%F 1 6,506,0007T) °

NE RS AR EEGE
RANEEBOFADE  HRHE
BEEME -

AEBRBEIARRHEEHERR
RN RERENRBELBNT

15 Fixed Assets (continued)

(h)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in the income statement during the year ended
31 March 2011 were $7,983,000 (2010: $6,506,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

rEE PN
The Group The Company
2011
Fr
$°000
1FER Within 1 year 383,563 288,647 3,224 2,676
112 B5F K After 1 year but within 5 years 454,357 513,685 1,684 244
5F 1% After 5 years 43,487 55,858 = -
881,407 858,190 4,908 2,920
VERELEELEE () Reversal of impairment loss
RAFER  URERATHNEMY During the year, there was no reversal of impairment loss on
EWEFRESEED NEBEE2_Z% other properties located in Malaysia. The reversal of impairment
—ZZF=ZA=+—HIFERN U loss on other properties located in Malaysia amounting to
ERATMEMMERESEEDA $4,145,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 March
4,145,000 C2 2% THER A — 2010 by reference to the valuation report prepared by VPC
8 %8 37 & 2 {4 (& AT VPC Alliance (JB) Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd., an independent firm of professional
Sdn.Bhd. E—ZE—ZF = BREMH valuers in Malaysia, in March 2010.
BERERTIARER -
BEEKH () Pledge of assets

REEBEBEREER  BITEREMN
BRI 8 49,845,000,0007T( —E—=F
4 : 9,108,000,0007T ) K EE & E{E
AIET(25ME24) o

Tian Teck Land Limited X{EihEAR A &

At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of
$9,845,000,000 (2010: $9,108,000,000) were pledged to

secure the bank loan (see note 24).



SEPNGILE oL 16 Interest in Subsidiaries

AR F]
The Company
2011
Fx
$°000
5B (HRAAR) Investments, at cost
—3E LT G, — Unlisted shares 14,363 14,363
— BB LETRD — Shares listed in Hong Kong 139,226 139,226
153,589 153,589
B R(EEE Less: Impairment losses (14,363) (14,363)
139,226 139,226
FEURBT A RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 148,581 149,655
B OR(EEE Less: Impairment losses (42,326) (49,727)
245,481 239,154
EmkOmE Market value of listed shares 2,826,836 2,673,131
FEUWNEARRERREHRE - 8« W Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
BEEERE - ZHEHEATER—FAWK no fixed repayment terms. The balances are not expected to be
[@] o recovered within one year.
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16 AMIB A B BIRER @) 16 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
TRINFAEFFRENBARES - BR2E The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
SEERE SN TR RIRRA 1 AR o Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

PGz fl
Proportion of ownership interest
MBS R A5EHN  HBEAR FH B
REwE BRTRAEZRAFE BERER 58 QREE
Place of Group’s held by
incorporation  Particulars of issued and effective the held by
Name of company and operation  paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
B BERR AR Bk 360,000,000 BIREEI T REG  5001%  46.41% 3.6% HAEMERLEER
Associated International Hong Kong 360,000,000 shares of $1 each Property and
Hotels Limited investment holding
Sparkland Investments Limited ~ &/& R ERAE TR 100% 100% - REER
Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment holding
BRARLNA BE RGREE T2 RH 100% - 100% HAEMEEREER
Harkam Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property and
investment holding
Farish Limited BB MR EREE T KD 100% 100% - REARS
Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Nominee services
ER(ER)ERAR BB 1,600,000 &R EEST 2 R 100% 100% - BENE
Metropolitan (International) Limited Hong Kong 1,600,000 shares of $5 each Property holding
Associated International &b R FRAEI0T R 50.01% - 100% #EFR
Resorts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
Dalwhinnie Limited a5 2R EREE10T 8D 50.01% - 100% REER
Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
BEBRLA BE 200,000 B EE 1702 Bifn 50.01% - 100% HEME
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares of $1 each Property holding
Austin Hills Land Sdin. Bhd. HRAT 21,000,002f% B EE 50.01% - 100% REER
Malaysia BRAR TR Investment holding
21,000,002 shares of MYR1 each
94  Tian Teck Land Limited XEhEFR QT



16 R B QR @)

16 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

TEINHAEFEFRENBARES - BR2E The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
SEERES) T ARIRDTE AL E o (48) Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
(Continued)

MBS R
e
Place of
incorporation

Name of company and operation

Fribezste bl

Proportion of ownership interest

AEEN BEAA =)
ERTRMERAFE BRER ¥ OQRHE IEER
Group’s held by

Particulars of issued and effective the held by

paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity

Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. S5k /835

Malaysia

Austin Hills Country Resort Pte. £ I3
Ltd. Singapore

Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. BRAE

Malaysia

Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd. BRAE

Malaysia

10,001,285/ G KA (E 50.01% - 99.99% EAVEESMARL
BRATTITZ R R REGH(GT)
ToARELEREREE Proprietor and
SRAZTITBRG operator of a golf and

10,001,285 shares of MYR1 each recreational club
and 754 preference shares of (Note)

MYR1 each
REBREERMETITZRG  50.01% - 100% BFEES
2 shares of SGD1 each In the process of
voluntary liquidation
oEREESRARTITZRG  50.01% - 100% BFEET
2 shares of MYR1 each In the process of

voluntary liquidation

R BHREESRASLITZRG  50.01% 100% BFEEET

2 shares of MYR1 each In the process of

voluntary liquidation
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16

96

IRH R~ R VR )

[

LA E -+ Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
(TAHCRB) M AR IEL SN G BHITE
TEESRARITITTHESLR - RIE 8
EANEBIERS - ELRRMARFLREBRR
REFHRRNRER  WHREASBAK
RS RE R

EEERARPANREBRA(ARE=TFT
L) EmEF - EEEERNIEE ATEES M
L im k BR(B ST iR 2 A ) 2 (B =k JA FRAHCRBE
FERE A REE ABRKASHNER (L

B85 X AHCRBFT45 T8 £ IR AR B 2 7 B+
HETEIRE) - B MIRRNER AT B o
BAELRNEIE B AE®R AL AR - A
FIREAERR -

MM EESFTE - AMEHER =T —F=A
“HRERE  AEEMSARRELELE
BERNARIF o HBMEE HAHCRBME E + £
HEETHRENERT  EXRREBIES
AR R LA 7 75 = 3R B I 8 2 AHCRB A& R 17
HRE 2O ERBE-ERFHELESD
BRI E th AR eR 2 BT - BASEE -

EEeRALRNRNETHASERE
AHCRBFT#E A s #EE R 2W TEX -

Tian Teck Land Limited X&EithEHR A A

16 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
Note: Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of

preference shares of Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf
and recreational club in exchange for their paid-in membership fees
deposits in prior years. These shareholders have the same voting rights
as the existing ordinary shareholders and are entitled to use the facilities
within the golf and recreational club.

During the terms or at the expiry of the preference shares which ranges
from 5 to 30 years, the holders of these shares have the option to
convert their shares into ordinary shares, by paying the difference
between the consideration of allotment of ordinary and preference
shares or such other price as the Board of Directors of AHCRB may
decide which shall entitle the holders of such conversion golf
membership of the club in perpetuity subject to any adjustments in
relation to the issued price based on the instalment scheme offered by
AHCRB. Should the preference shares not be converted into ordinary
shares at the expiry date, they will be redeemed at par value.

Following the completion of the disposal of the Properties on 2 March
2011 as set out in note 5, the Group’s golf and recreational club
operation ceased thereafter. In the event of winding-up or liquidation of
AHCRB'’s assets, the preference shareholders shall be repaid in
proportion to the amounts subscribed and paid-up to AHCRB by the
respective shareholders by way of capital before any other surplus is
distributed in accordance with certain order or priority and subject to
certain conditions.

The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on the

Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.



17 A EERES 17 Available-for-sale Equity Securities

M
The Group

BB LT ERE S Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
(¥%mE) at market value 5,199 2,970
18 EWERRX eI & RFEIR 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments

rEE RAFE
The Group The Company

FEUAR R Accounts receivable 47,067 42,977 204 180
B RIEIRAEE Less: Allowance for bad and

(MI7E18(b)) doubtful debts (note 18(b)) = (30) - (30)

47,067 42,947 204 150

HESSSERE Deposits and prepayments 9,554 10,310 223 219

56,621 53,257 427 369
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18 BWERFX ~ AT € XA F @ 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(@) BREADH () Ageing analysis
REEBEXREER  BIEEEKE The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance for
oIS RENZANNEREZ(D bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
Ik FIEEEE BRI T : receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

FEE NN
The Group The Company

FSakt Current 44,272 39,635 = -
B HER D1 E A Less than 1 month past due 1,469 2,695 102 70
BHEA1 =36 A 1 to 3 months past due 740 535 74 59
E R RS (E A 1B More than 3 months but less
L1218 A than 12 months past due 576 77 19 16
wERERE12{8 A More than 12 months
past due 10 5 9 5
[l lert-c] Amounts past due 2,795 3,312 204 150
47,067 42,947 204 150
REA—MRESREBEEH  EFER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and 10
H—# A10KE14K - @ Eie 2T to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
B o REBZEMEEMEBIER charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
KisE28(a) © in note 28(a).
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18 FEWEBRTX » s5T& & FE{SF @) 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(b) FEWERFURIE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
REFERNREES FEESENT The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

rE KA TF]
The Group The Company

#2010,20094F At 1 April 2010/2009

4818 30 5,146 30 -
B (&EE), /R Impairment losses
S EE R (reversed)/recognised (30) (266) (30) 30
BT ATUZEIZEE  Uncollectible amounts
written off - (35) = —
BIERRIEEEH Alowance for bad and
REBER%E doubtful debts included
in discontinued operation - (5,423) - -
ERZERE Exchange differences = 608 - _
M3H31H At 31 March - 30 - 30
R-E——F=A=+—H &£FH At 31 March 2011, no impairment of account receivable was
JE UAT BE 25 ) SR (B 0 4 il e S R o determined and recognised. The Group’s accounts receivable
RoEBE—TE=—A=+—0 K&=E of $50,000 at 31 March 2010 was individually determined to be
i R Uk BE 22 oh B 8 51 B o Rl impaired. Management assessed that only a portion of the

receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowance for bad and doubtful debts of $30,000 at 31 March

2010 was recognised.

IR A50,0007T © BIEE DAL TE
STRA B EIERFRATME - Fit
R-ZE—ZTFE=ZA=+—HEERH
RIZHR R IE 454 /330,0007T, ©
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18 FEWERF » ST & RFEN @)

(©)

2B RAE R B W AR TR
1B BRI AR AR R (B M FE ISR
HEBERATIT

18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

rEE PN
The Group The Company

KREHAs )2 AHIE  Neither past due nor impaired 44,272 39,635 = -
BH DR {E A Less than 1 month past due 1,469 2,689 102 64
B EA1 =316 A 1 to 3 months past due 740 521 74 45
E AR RS (E A 1B More than 3 months but
LIM2{E A less than 12 months
past due 576 77 19 16

BIHARR 1218 A More than 12 months

past due 10 5 9 5
2,795 3,292 204 130
47,067 42,927 204 130

REHOR B R E N KR BT
HRBARRCENEREREP

ERMER A RENBURRRER
HARSEEE R FEBERN— L
BEF - EEERR  REAELER
HRNEEERYBEANE - AR
RERIEGE R 28U E - FTAEEA
UL FHEREER -

100 Tian Teck Land Limited K& th & R 2D &

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.



19 BIEMFRITERK
K=F——F=A=+—8  RTEREM
PRI - DUEB — SIS 8RAT M 3R1T B
(2HM3E24) -

20 MERBEEEY

19 Pledged Bank Deposits

At 31 March 2011, bank deposits were pledged to a designated bank

to secure the bank loan (see note 24).

20 Cash and Cash Equivalents

ES 3 LN
The Group The Company
2011
Fr
$°000
RITERER Deposits with banks 864,921 400,243 5,227 5,002
RITFEHEIES Cash at bank and in hand 34,230 9,090 1,139 993
899,151 409,333 6,366 6,215

21 HttEARKRETEN

21 Other Payables and Accruals

EE
The Group

KATH
The Company

2011
Fx
$°000

HFETIEMESTEA Accruals and retention monies

K ERHREB R payable for redevelopment work 87,101 171,059 - -

HEM RN Other payables and accruals
B 59,279 33,294 861 1,100
146,380 204,353 861 1,100

BT EL A 3 R A B AT R — B
fi o

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled

within one year.
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22 BEWET£

BERFTEE2AMEERS  AHEATER—

FRBR e

23 RHIRKE S EME

22 Deposits Received
Deposits received mainly represent rental deposits which are not

expected to be settled within one year.

23 Provision for Long Service Payments

REH

The Group

Fr

$°000

72010543118 At 1 April 2010 1,399
AN 2 4 [l A Provision written back for the year (29)
R20119F3A31H At 31 March 2011 1,370

RIBEECRBIED) - AEBARL AR
TFFA LB TRBRAGRE - EXLER
TWAEEL—EMNK - BNESRRABHET
REMNFHE RRBEH - BERARERK
SR AEBEHNHRSETE - K&
B8 B BRI E E R AR ERD

B

102 Tian Teck Land Limited K& th & R 2D &

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.



24

RITER —BEA
R=B-——F=A=+—8  ROTERNE
HEBIT

1FA Within 1 year

1612 1B2F R
2F1B1B5F R

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2011, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

T EE
The Group

2011

T

$°000
200,000 =

200,000 1,105,000
800,000 =

1,000,000 1,105,000

1,200,000 1,105,000

RZZEZARFHAZ+TAH  ARAIMMH
B2 A — s E B OB 5 A BR A A —
87 77 7] & — {9 A& £ 1,200,000,000 7T I
BEWHZE -  ZRITHERAN—HBEIER
F15@FMR —_E——F=H=+—H
B T {8 9,845,000,000 5T ( —F — T 4
9,108,000,00007T) #) & TREIE EEME —
E A R ERE M ERNE T
BEMNEFHRCHESERER - K
—Z——F=-A=+—H cHREZYEEE
(ZZE—ZF : 1,105,000,0007L) °

LB AR TR E WA R EE
ERERVNAFHERRBRESARERS
ME - RITERE - ERFAE TIRIFAIER
T ETEREMRAER

ZME AR IRITRVE A BT AP
TW*??Aéﬁﬁﬁﬁ%Tﬁfmiﬁé
FeeE A - WAREBERE —ENREK
oo WM B A RIERZE RS - AI/ERB
HMENREEEIRIUNEERE - AEBEgTH
= X

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with a
bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over certain fixed assets referred to in note 15(a) with carrying
value of $9,845,000,000 as at 31 March 2011 (2010: $9,108,000,000)
and a first floating charge over certain assets placed on or used in the
redevelopment. The facilities were fully utilised as at 31 March 2011
(2010: $1,105,000,000).

The subsidiary has exercised the option as contained in the facility
agreement to request for the extension of the facilities for two
additional years after the expiry of the initial 5-year term. The bank has

agreed, subject to certain conditions, to grant such an extension.

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the subsidiary were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2011 and 2010,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached.
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25 miEHERIE 25 Obligations under Finance Leases
R-Z——F=A=1+—0 ' rE£EHNEE At 31 March 2011, the Group had obligations under finance leases
THEAEAERIOT ¢ repayable as follows:

r&EE
The Group

2011
REHEE BEHEE
ARBERE B CEE

Present value Present value
of the minimum  Total minimum  EReRia=Naallalloa V7o Ko c=NagiallyaVag!

lease payments lease payments [EEREREVANCININNCERER oW lelalEs]

T T T T

$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

1ER Within 1 year 4 4 31 31
1FE B E2FER After 1 year but within 2 years 4 4 31 31
2F1RIB5ER After 2 years but within 5 years 79 79 83 83
120 120 114 114

161 161 145 145

B BEFIS SIS Less: Total future interest expenses - -

HEAENTE Present value of lease obligations 161 145
26 FERBUFHIE 26 Government Lease Premiums Payable
rEE
The Group
2011
Fr
$°000
FE BT H(E Government lease premiums payable 2,284 2,327
S BIEREAMEN R EST  Less: Amount due within one year included in
BAr1FAEMNRFIR other payables and accruals (44) 43)
2,240 2,284
FERBATHER B 2R A EBEREUETE Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FZE5E(ZE—ZF : 5FE):1E o fixed rate of 5% (2010: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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27 BEXRKf#®E 27 Capital and Reserves

(a) MEZANILBDHVEE (@) Movements in components of equity
REBIGEERNTEMAK I HE The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
TEHRERHEER - JEREE each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
BEEHER - AR RNFUEFKRE in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
&R R AR PR FB 2 Y B BY S 1B 51 H A the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
AT The Company

BRAs REE REEF

Share Share Retained

capital premium earnings
T T T
$000 $°000 $000

M2009%4H1H  Balance at 1 April 2009

Of S 118,683 3,147 234,615 356,445
SHMEZEA  Impact of change in
2 accounting policy 2(a) - - 17,692 17,692

720094818  Restated balance at

WERLEER 1 April 2009 118,683 3,147 252,307 374,137
KEZ R K Profit for the year and

SHEMALE total comprehensive

(EHR) income (restated) - - 08.188 28,188

7201053831 H Restated balance at
%2010F4H18 31 March 2010 and

MEREER 1 April 2010 118,683 3,147 280,495 402,325
REFRMK Profit for the year and
SHEIRALEE total comprehensive
income - - 29,826 29,826

20115 3H31H Balance at 31 March 2011
a3 118,683 3,147 310,321 432,151

Annual Report 2010-2011 3% 105



PR R EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
(L& %57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 EXRRfFEE@®

(b)

fi% 7N

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)
Share capital

(b)

2011
T
$°000
EE Authorised:
600,000,000/ FAXEE0.257T 600,000,000 shares of $0.25 each 150,000 150,000
ERTRAR Issued and fully paid:
474,731,824 R EEO0.257T 474,731,824 shares of $0.25 each 118,683 118,683

BB A BB TR K
§ YAAEARBAE LERHE K
B —F - HRARABNFBRE
B MARONBZEE RS -

RENEERNAR
1 i E AR AR R BIE B A A G
) 48BIEATEE -

ERFEBEREATFEERREE
MESHBB IR AFEANDHERN
HitMEEHRYG - ZBECEER
B ES - MEXEEABWEREL
EREENERRGShELRES
ARBHER] o 1A D IRAY o

AEBEERIINERE - Wik
1(n T8 R IR B )8 IS & B 75 3R 3R
FTEARER =B BURMEEE ©

AREEFREERENEER
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ—m\ﬂj%%ﬁ?ﬁsﬁ
ERAEFHFRE AL
&S BORRE

ERFERE—HBARETET
FRRIME ST I T B SRR T e A &2
1 5 B B8 /2 BN AT 20 I B 0% 355 0
HBIEE
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The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
The application of the share premium account is governed by
section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses recognised in prior years and other properties
revaluation surplus recognised during the year. The hotel has
been redeveloped into ISQUARE. Upon the retirement or
disposal of the properties, any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations in note 1(r).

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 1(d).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant to
the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a
subsidiary to preference shareholders.



27 EXRKfFEE@

(d)

Atk
RZTE——F=ZA=+—8 " RE
EBCRRHEN)FE7IBIERETER
A5 R TR 7R R AR R Y 7 1 48

%8 /5158,291,0007T (=T —FF ¢
151,365,00070) « EEEREES
%%%ﬁa&@%%ﬁi%%éﬁ
017 (ZE—FF &) -
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BEREE
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HRBIRTT B FAERE £ 201,919,000 7T
(ZZ2—ZF : fITERBEBBR
BB MR HEEIRTTE R RIRS
#533,384,0007T) °

W
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27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, was $158,291,000 (2010:
$151,365,000). After the balance sheet date the Directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.17 per share (2010: Nil),
amounting to $80,704,000 (2010: Nil) (note 12). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2011
and 2010.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
2011, the Group’s gearing ratio was 11.8% (2010 (restated):
12.5%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
from both continuing and discontinued operations of
$201,919,000 (2010: total bank loan exceeding bank deposits
and cash from both continuing and discontinued operations of
$533,384,000).
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28 BIEBREERQAEE

28 Financial Risk Management and

AEEEELREBEETLIRER R
B MEMEKRER - AEETSHEE
ETERREMEENERERRR -
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ZEEERRNSERRE R RANE T MK
SEBIAT o

(@ EERMR
REEMEERREZ KR A EBKE
Feo BRECEMREERE AT
ETEERFTEAXMEERR -

REWETMS - HRBEZE KR
BB TLBEENTP  A5EE
ELEREE R - BIMGEHRFTH
BRRTEEIHRENTSRE A
MEERES  TEEREFPHEER
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—MBESAEARE  EXERH—
MBRI0ORE14K - BEAGEUCHE ©
AEBMEEEEWBER THBEARK
EBAREUERITE) - REERRE
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AEEYEBEAEERBRETHNE
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Fair Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 22) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 18.



28 BIEEREERAAEEG@

(b)

REBVE S EE

REB M BREE HE R E R MR
HWRBELFR  URBEBETERN
Rt - WREF TR SHEE - [
FERTTAGRIRH R MHEER - U
mRESNRERNRBESTK

TERFAVAREERANRBZITES
MEEREERBREHEANHGRE
HRBNHFRIR - ZFFRRAOARITR
ReRne (BRAAHMNELIZNE
EBBERAEBNERNE(MEF
BIFENF SN RAKRBMAR
FRRFE X REM SR

28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
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28 B EMREER A ALEE @ 28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)
(b) RBELEK @) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
NEE The Group

2011
&8
BESER AFRRE 1Faxk BB #@B2F
BRHE RELAE ZEBEAB (EOHM2F (EIRSE  BBESE
Balance Total More than ~ More than
sheet contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than

amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5years 5years
5 5 5 5 5 5
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $000
Hib IR Other payables and accruals
et E R 146,380 146,380 146,380 - - -
BlET® Deposits received 131,327 131,327 5,984 93,502 29,922 1,919
BARE AL Obligations under finance leases 161 161 M M 79 =
$FITEZ—BHE Bank loan - secured 1,200,000 1,216,273 207,470 206,045 802,758 -
FENTR B Government lease premiums
payable 2,240 4,131 159 159 477 3,336
1,480,108 1,498,272 360,034 299,747 833,236 5,255

2010

1ERZK i1 FRIB2F

BEBAE EOR2F  BIRNGEF

More than More than

sheet  contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but

carrying - undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than

amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000

HiRARR Other payables and accruals

E:tBA 204,353 204,353 204,353 - - -
ElETE Deposits received 101,139 101,139 4,492 2,614 92,128 1,905
WEMERE Obligations under finance leases 145 145 31 31 83 -
RITEF—FEHA Bank loan - secured 1,105,000 1,114,641 6,393 1,108,248 - -
FENTUTHhE Government lease premiums

payable 2,284 4,290 159 159 477 3,495
1412921 1,424,568 215428 1,111,052 92,688 5,400
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28 BIREKREERAAEME @ 28 Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values (continued)

(b) REBE SRR @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Vi N/NE]! The Company
2011
EESMER AHRTER 1FRs  BBIFE
IREE REREBAE EEEAR D25
Balance Total More than
sheet contractual 1 year but
carrying undiscounted Within 1 year less than
amount cash flow or on demand 2 years
T Fr Fr Fx
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
E R Other payables and accruals
fEETE 861 861 861 -
2UET & Deposits received 996 996 370 626
1,857 1,857 1,231 626

2010
BERER 1A HBBE1FE
FEE BRI AN D2
Balance Total More than
sheet contractual 1 year but
carrying undiscounted  Within 1 year less than
amount cash flow or on demand 2 years
Tz T+t T T
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Hib & Other payables and accruals
fEETE M 1,100 1,100 1,100 -
BWETE Deposits received 1,000 1,000 900 100
2,100 2,100 2,000 100
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28 BIREKREERANAEME @ 28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c) F=EEPFz (¢) Interest rate risk
AREBHFMERABREBERGIETE The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.
Ko FEMBRITEREAREBERT The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
RenENEXERE AEEERERS cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
ERE TR a0 T () Fr i monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

()  FI=HR ()  Interest rate profile
TRFINEEGBEREER The following table details the interest rate profile of the
AEBHEEF RN Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date:

AEE
The Group
2011 2010

BERF= ERRFI=

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
% %

EEEE Fixed rate borrowings:

BEFEEIE  Obligations under finance

leases - 161 - 145
FERTEFHE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,240 5.00 2,284
2,401 2,429
FEEE: Variable rate borrowings:
RITER— Bank loan — secured
B 0.70 1,200,000 0.58 1,105,000
BELE Total borrowings 1,202,401 1,107,429
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BHREREERAABE®

(©)

*u zﬂlgrk (nﬁ

(i)

BURE DT
W-—T——HF=Zf=+—H"
HEtEFERLRE LA TH25
(ZZ—F4F : 25)ET - INEFR
BEMUBARERTE -

S ERBIE R RARE & F i

Bl #E 0492,505,000 7T
(ZZ=—Z4F : 2,763,0007T) °

A GRRRE D AT B R
(BREREEBBREERE
&) EARSERR B E R (FIR
B A B AR E(L - iR E
FEAEREEBEREERR
BRERTETAMEEMNER
SREMNERARTE - A&H
BB EMN(EREET) 5
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28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

(©

(i)

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2010: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $2,505,000

(2010: $2,763,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2010.
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28 BIxEREERAAEEG@

(d) E%EE
SRR D RERNEERAEL
FEAREBENREERHERESE -
MR AEERINERR T ZREET
ERER - Bt - ANEE W EE A
SNETHERMERMEENAIE

o

() EEREREE
TERHINAEEREERER
EEBFTERENETEENDS
WREEMEENEERR

MRS ~ AT I

28 Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values (continued)

(d) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s
functional currency. The Group does not hedge its financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in the
view that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure primarily
refers to the fixed deposits denominated in United States
Dollars (“USD”).

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from

recognised assets denominated in USD:

TEE
The Group

2011 2010
E YR ESVIvR
USD’000 USD’000

Accounts receivable, deposits and

FEfRIR prepayments - 5
BeNEEEEBY Cash and cash equivalents - 49,521
RSB\ R R F R Overall net exposure - 49,526

iy BREDN
HABEEIETIHG  AEE
R 78 B B % B 25 T AR BB
HHNE R TEEAT R EX o B
g R=ZF——FN=_T—F
FAAMEITERE DT -
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(i)  Sensitivity analysis
In the light of the Hong Kong dollar peg, the foreign
currency risk associated with the USD exposure is not
expected to be material to the Group and the Company.
Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is performed in 2011

and 2010.
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28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(e

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 1(d)).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale equity investments portfolio have been
chosen based on their long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectation.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 31 March 2011,
it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 28% (2010: 35%) in
the market value of the Group’s listed investments, with all
other variables held constant, would not affect the Group’s
profit unless there are impairments. The Group’s total equity
would increase/decrease by $1,456,000 (2010: $1,039,000).
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

Fair values

The fair value of each financial instrument is categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are

directly or indirectly based on observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data
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28 BIREKREERANAEME @ 28 Financial Risk Management and

H 2AREE@E
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Fair Values (Continued)

(f)  Fair values (Continued)
At 31 March 2011, the only financial instruments of the Group
carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity securities of
$5,199,000 (2010: $2,970,000) listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (see note 17). These instruments fall into Level 1

of the fair value hierarchy as described above.

29 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s

income statement.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia and Singapore
are members of the Employee Provident Fund and the Central
Provident Fund (“the funds”) operated by the respective local
government. The relevant subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on the salaries of
the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the above funds is

the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2010: Nil) was utilised to
reduce the contributions payable for the year. Unutilised forfeited
contributions of $9,000 (2010: Nil) had yet to be applied by the Group
at 31 March 2011.



30 HEiE 30 Commitments

@ N=-TBE——F=ZA=+—H (@) Capital commitments outstanding at
REMHXARKERBERERRA 31 March 2011 not provided for in the
BIENEARFIENT - financial statements were as follows:

#%E
The Group
2011
Fr
$'000
2ET4 Contracted for 6,398 6,339

b) R=ZE——F=Z/F=+— (b) At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum
H @ RIET ARV YEL lease payments under non-cancellable
EHETHERNINRER operating leases of properties are payable as
ENREAZWT - follows:

AEH
The Group

1FR Within 1 year - 361
AEBRNLCEHEHAN—BYE The Group was the lessee in respect of a property held under
HEBEA - EHEASRE  WER an operating lease. The lease ran for a period of two years and
REERNLM - ZHETBEHEME expired during the year. The lease did not include contingent
& o rentals.

* '+| . .

31 bEEEF 31 Comparative Figures
RN TCREBERERDE 129 T3 As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income
HIMER] MBETUAREFTEEHFE - taxes, certain comparative figures have been adjusted. Further details
BRI IAR T BCR E EH M eF 55 SR M of this change in accounting policy are disclosed in note 2.
52 o
AN - BT RBFEEFH AR S AF In addition, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
EWE35 o conform with the current year’s presentation.
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Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling

Party

At 31 March 2011, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity

does not produce financial statements available for public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet effective for the Year Ended

31 March 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2011 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

(a) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group early repaid
the bank loan totalling $900,000,000 in April and May 2011.

(b) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed

a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 12.
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Five Year Financial Summary
(LB ¥ 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 5 Results
2009 2010 2011
(BH) (E®)
(restated) (restated)
T T Frx
$°000 $'000 $°000
R Turnover
— BEKE - Continuing operation 7,950 8,777 9,241 128,053 382,630
—BIbgE — Discontinued operation 18,326 17,497 16,525 17,246 17,010
26,276 26,274 25,766 145,299 399,640
"SRR (BR) Profit/(loss) from operations 660,153 473,638 (207,219) 2,805,772 1,067,099
A& R AR Finance costs (122) (121) (119) (4,325) (9,175)
BRBLATER(B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 660,031 473,517  (207,338) 2,801,447 1,057,924
ARS8 (5E) Income tax (Note) (111,532) (50,877) 4,646 (8,747) (8,223)
REFELEIREE Profit/(loss) for the year from
R (E5E) continuing operation 548,499 422,640 (202,692) 2,792,700 1,049,701
RERIERE ZKRKEE Profit/(loss) for the year from
BF(ER) discontinued operation (4,626) (1,730) (1,788) 5,366 202,494
AEEHEN,(F5E) Profit/(loss) for the year 543,873 420,910 (204,480) 2,798,066 1,252,195
THIALHER : Attributable to:
DA R Equity shareholder of the
Company 278,694 221,226 (102,130) 1,413,252 641,078
FEFE AT A RS Non-controlling interests 265,179 199,684 (102,350) 1,384,814 611,117
543,873 420,910 (204,480) 2,798,066 1,252,195
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Five Year Financial Summary
(L& %57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EERERE Assets and Liabilities

2008 2009 2010 2011

(E%R) (E#)

(restated) (restated)
T T Fr
$'000 $'000 $°000
BlE&E Fixed assets 5,364,683 5,993,928 6,342,832 9,360,182 10,176,725

HiBHEE Other investments in securities/

A ERERES available-for-sale equity securities 2,037 3,621 1,369 2,970 5,199
FIERI B E E (F) Deferred tax assets (Note) 1,501 1,565 16,179 8,074 242
MENEEFE Net current assets 435,653 404,490 245,806 601,804 979,777

5,808,874 6,403,604 6,606,186 9,973,030 11,161,943

RITER —H/EH Bank loan — secured - (130,000) (668,000) (1,105,000) (1,000,000)
FER B ATHE Government lease premiums

payable (2,406) (2,367) (2,327) (2,284) (2,240)

REEEHAE Obligations under finance leases (188) (70) - (114) (120)

EEREE E () Deferred tax liabilties (Note) (717,295)  (749,873) (768) (819) (1,001)

Hig ke Other financial liabilities @ @ @ - -

EEFE NET ASSETS 5,088,983 5,621,292 6,035,089 8,864,813 10,158,582

[N Share capital 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683

B Reserves 2,497,706 2,716,323 2,981,528 4,411,319 5,074,304

2,616,389 2,835,006 3,100,211 4,530,002 5,192,987

R Non-controlling interests 2467504 2,686,286 2,934,878 4,334,811 4,965,505

e TOTAL EQUITY 5,083,983 5,621,292 6,035,089 8,864,813 10,158,582
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Note:

The Group has early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in
respect of the recognition of deferred tax on certain investment properties
carried at fair value and non-depreciable assets measured using the revaluation
model. The change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS 12 has
been applied retrospectively by restating the opening balances at 1 April 2009
and 2010, with consequential adjustments to the figures for the year ended 31
March 2010. Figures in financial years before 1 April 2008 have not been
restated as it is not practicable to do so.
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